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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen: 
City of Corinth, Mississippi 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the primary government of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, as of and for 
the year ended September 30,2011, which collectively comprise the basic fmancial statements of the City's primary government 
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Corinth, Mississippi's 
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

The financial statements do not include financial data for the City's legally separate component units. Accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require the financial data for those component units to be reported with the 
financial data of the City's primary government unless the City also issues financial statements for the financial reporting entity 
that include the data for its component units. The City has not issued such reporting entity financial statements. Because of this 
departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the assets, liabilities, net assets, 
revenues, and expenses of the aggregate discretely presented component units would have been reported as $82,458,376, 
$38,236,740, $44,221,636, $12,276,334, and $9,051,021, respectively. 

In our opinion, because of the omission of the discretely presented component units, as discussed previously, the financial 
statements referred to previously do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the financial position ofthe aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, 
as of September 30, 2011, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended. 

In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information for the primary government of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2011, and the respective changes 
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 18, 2012, on our 
consideration of the City of Corinth's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 7 and 33 35 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City of Corinth, Mississippi's primary government financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying combining 
other governmental funds financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The combining 
other governmental fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the fmancial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial statements taken as a whole. 
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• 

Corinth, Mississippi 
June 18,2012 
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• CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

• 


MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


The discussion and analysis of the City of Corinth, Mississippi's, financial performance provides an overall narrative review 
of the City's financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2011. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at 
the City's performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and the financial 
statements to enhance their understanding of the City's financial performance. Information contained in this section is 
qualified by the more detailed information contained elsewhere in the City's financial statements, notes to financial 
statements and any accompanying materials. To the extent this discussion contains any forward-looking statements of the 
City's plans, objectives, expectations and prospects, the actual results could differ materially from those discussed herein. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Total net assets increased $4,598,811, which represents a 15.19% increase from fiscal year 2010. 

General revenues account for $10,931,113 in revenue, or 52.61% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the 
form of charges for services and grants and contributions accounted for $5,973,611 or 28.75% of total revenues . 

The City had $16,176,909 in expenses; only $5,973,611 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges 
for services, grants and contributions. General revenues of $10,931,113 were adequate to provide for these 
programs. 

Among major funds, the General Fund had $9,831,580 in revenues and $9,807,023 in expenditures. The General 
Fund's fund balance decreased $81,574 over the prior year. 

Governmental activities capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $1,173,445 due mainly to 
street improvements. Business-type activities capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, decreased by 
$538,435, due mainly to depreciation. 

Governmental activities long-term debt increased by $5,035,981 due to new loans. Business-type activities long­
term debt decreased by $4,540,000 due to payment on debt $651,411 and forgiveness of the Water Pollution Control 
Loan in the amount of$3,888,589. 

The City transferred a loan of $9,547,000 to the Corinth Utility Commission that was payable to the Mississippi 
Department of Health. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic 
financial statements comprise three components: I) government-wide fmancial statements, 2) fund fmancial statements, and 
3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide fmancial statements are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements are prepared using 
the accrual basis ofaccounting and include all assets and liabilities. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two 
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. 
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal years. 

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of the City that are principally supported by property and sales 
taxes (governmental activities) and sewer and solid waste charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of 
the City include general government, public safety, public service, culture and recreation, and interest on long-term liabilities. 
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•CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 8 and 9 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 

that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and 

demonstrate compliance with fmance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into 

three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 


Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government­
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current spendable resources, as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such infonnation may be 
useful in evaluating the City's current financing requirements. Governmental Funds are reported using 
modified accrual accounting. This method of accounting measures cash and other assets that can be easily 
converted to cash. The Governmental Funds Statements provide a detailed short-tenn view of the City's •
operations. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide fmancial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's current fmancing decisions. Both the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds 
and governmental activities. These reconciliations are on pages 11 and 13, respectively. 

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all major funds. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 and 12 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for the same functions reported as business-type 
activities in the government-wide fmancial statements, only in more detail. The City uses proprietary funds 
to account for the operations of the sewer system and solid waste system. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 ofthis report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit ofparties outside the 
City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because resources of 
those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accrual basis of accounting is used 
for fiduciary funds. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for ., 
their intended purpose. The City's fiduciary activities are presented in separate Statements ofFiduciary Net 
Assets and Statement ofChanges in Fiduciary Net Assets on pages 17 and 18. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the fmancial statements can be 
found beginning on page 19 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary infonnation concerning the City's budget process. 

The City adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental and proprietary funds. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund and each additional major special revenue fund. This required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 33-35 ofthis report. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net assets. Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of government's financial position. In the case of the City, 
assets exceeded liabilities by $34,867,394 as of September 30,2011. 

The largest portion of the City's net assets (55.32%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
infrastructure, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these 
capital assets to provide services to its citizens. 

The City's financial position is a product of several financial transactions including the net result of activities, the acquisition 
and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets and the depreciation of capital assets. 

The following table presents a summary ofthe City's net assets for the fiscal year ended September 30,2011 and 2010 . 

Govemrrental Activities BlBi ness-Type Activities Total 
~H1 2010 2011 2010 2011 2)10 

CurreIt and Oth;:r Assets 

Car.ctal Assets, Net 

Total Assets 

$ 40,299,722 
8,011,965 

48,311,687 

$ 37,431,094 
6,842,565 

44,273,659 

$ 6,6CE,091 
29,297,684 

35,9%,775 

$ 7,096,688 
29,836,118 

36,932,806 

$ 46,998,813 
37,309,649 

84,308,462 

$ 44,527,782 
36,678,683 

81,206,465 

Ola Lialilities 
Lorg-Tetm Lialilities 

4,794,134 
32,284,504 

6,585,220 
27,248,523 

79,461 
12,282,969 

253,154 
16,822,969 

4,873,595 
44,567,473 

6,838,374 
44,071,492 

Total Liabilities 37,078,638 33,833,743 12,362,430 17,(176,123 49,441,068 50,9)9,866 

'Net Assets 
Imested in Otpital Assets, Net 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

2,218,932 
2,635,82) 
6,378,297 

1,156,703 
3,303,799 
5,979,414 

17,069,379 

6,564,966 

13,(174,639 
134,157 

6,617,887 

19,288,311 
2,635,820 

12,943,263 

14,231,342 
3,437,956 

12,597,301 

Total Net Assets $ 11,233,049 $ 10,439,916 $ 23,634,345 $ 19,826,683 $ 34,867,39<l $ 30,266,599 

The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on the Statement ofNet Assets. 

» The acquisition of $5,390,071 in notes receivable from the Corinth Utility Commission. See Note 3 for additional 
information. 

» The principal retirement of $457,810 of long-term debt in the governmental activities and $885,175 in the business­
type activities. 

» The refunding of $2,200,000 of long-term debt and the transferring of a $9,547,000 loan to the Corinth Utility 
Commission in the governmental activities. 

» The forgiveness of$3,888,589 oflong-term debt in the business-type activities. 
» The acquisition of $14,971,144 in long-term debt (see Note 5) in the governmental activities and $240,590 in the 

business-type activities. 
» The acquisition of$I,173,445 in infrastructure improvements, mobile equipment, and furniture and equipment, net 

of depreciation, in the governmental activities. 
» The acquisition of$842,611 in equipment and sewer line improvements in the business-type activities. 

Changes in net assets. The City's total revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, were $20,775,720. The total 
cost of all programs and services was $16,176,909. The following table presents a summary of the changes in net assets for 
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
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•CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENrS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

Ga.temnettal Activities Business-1)rre Activities Tctal 
2)11 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 

Re\eI1U;:S 

Program R.everues $ 1,789,071 $ 2,529,319 $ 4,184,540 $ 4,359,939 $ 5,973,611 $ 6,889,258 

10,931,113 10,812,178
General R.everues 10,843,268 10,72.2,110 87,l!A5 90,068 


Loan Forgiveress 3,8iU,<B6 3,8iU,<B6 


8,143.381 4,459,007 2),775,720 17,701,436Total R.evenu;:s 12,632,339 l3.251,429 

Exp::nses 
General Ga.temneri 2,205,566 l,m,826 2,205,566 1,923,826 

Ptblic Safety 5,659,402 5,825,287 5,659,402 5,825,287 

Pt.blic Sen4ce 1,918,209 3,032,744 1,918,m 3,032,744 • 
Culture an:! Recreation 1,824,609 1,680,ot5 1,82A,ro9 1,689,045 

S~ 2,659,926 2,369,294 2,659,926 2,369,294 

Sdid Waste 1,382,2)5 1.395,774 1,382,2)5 1,395,774 

Interest 00 La1g-Tenn Liabilities 233,404 261,263 293,588 321,405 526,<B2 582,668 

Total Expenses 11,841,190 12,723,165 4,335,719 4,086,473 16,176,1XJ9 16,809,638 

Increase in N'et Assets $ 791,149 $ 528,264 $ 3,807,662 $ 363,534 $ 4,598,811 $ 891,798 

Governmental activities. The following table presents the cost of five major City functional activities: general government, 
public safety, public service, culture and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. The table also shows each function's net 
cost (total cost less charges for services generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific 
programs). The net cost shows the fmancial burden that was placed on the State and City's taxpayers by each of these 
functions. 

Expenses 

2011 
Net (Expenses) 

Revenue Expenses 

2010 
Net (Expenses) 

Revenue 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Service 
Culture and Recreation 
Interest on Long-Term Liabiliti

$ 2,205,566 $ 
5,659,402 
1,918,209 
1,824,609 

es 233,404 

(2,063,811) 
(5,042,263) 
(1,208,107) 
(I,504,534) 

(233,404) 

$ 1,923,826 $ 
5,825,287 
3,032,744 
1,680,045 

261,263 

(1,923 ,826) 
(4,881,148) 
(1,754,449) 
(1,373,160) 

(261,263) 

Total Expenses $ 11,8412190 $ {l 0,052,119~ $ 121723 2165 $ (10,193,846) 

The net cost of governmental activities, $10,052,119 was financed by general revenue, which is made up of primarily 
property taxes of$3,405,400 and sales taxes of$6,353,325. 

Investment earnings accounted for $72,346 of funding in the governmental activities. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on current inflows, outflows and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


The financial perfonnance of the City's governmental activities as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the City 
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $35,270,672, an increase of $4,504,445. 
$5,466,324 or 15.50% of the fund balance constitutes unreserved and undesignated fund balance, which is available for 
spending at the City's discretion. The remaining fund balance of $29,804,348 or 84.50% is reserved or designated to indicate 
that it is not available for spending because it has been committed for specific programs. 

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City. The decrease in fund balance in the General Fund for the fiscal 
year was $81,574, or 1.46%. 

Proprietary Funds. The focus of the City's proprietary funds is the same as is provided in the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Sewer System Enterprise Fund at year-end amounted to 
$5,845,885. The increase in net assets amounted to $3,589,944. Unrestricted net assets of the Sanitation Enterprise Fund at 
year-end amounted to $719,081. The increase in net assets amounted to $217,718. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year, the City revised the annual operating budget for the General Fund to adjust line items between 
functions and increase budgeted expenditures based on revised revenue estimates. 

Schedules showing the original and final budget amounts compared to the City's actual financial activity for the General 
Fund and each major special revenue fund are provided in this report as required supplementary information. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRA nON 

Capital Assets. As of September 30, 2011, the City's total capital assets were $53,247,883, including land, buildings, 
construction in progress, infrastructure, and equipment. This amount represents an increase of $2,333,731 from the previous 
year, due primarily to street infrastructure improvements and mobile equipment. Total accumulated depreciation as of 
September 30, 2011, was $15,938,235, and total depreciation expense for the year was $1,733,277, resulting in total net 
capital assets of$37,309,648. 

Additional information of the City's capital assets can be found in the Notes 1 and 4 of this report. 

Debt Administration. At September 30, 2011, the City had $44,552,896 in Iong-tenn debt outstanding, of which $1,293,454 
is due within one year. This represents an increase of$481,404 as a result ofnew debt and scheduled repayments. 

Additional infonnation of the City's long-term debt can be found in the Notes 1 and 5 of this report. 

CURRENT ISSUES 

The City of Corinth, Mississippi is financially stable. 

The City has committed itself to financial excellence for many years. In addition, the City system of financial planning, 
budgeting and internal financial controls are weJI regarded. The City plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet 
the challenges of the future. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

If you have questions about this report, contact the Mayor's Office of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, 300 Childs Street, 
Corinth, MS 38834. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Primary Government 

Governmental Business-Type 


Activities Activities Total 


ASSETS 

$ 6,349,872 $ 13,987,766Cash in Bank $ 7,637,894 


Accounts Receivable, Net 2,958,188 353,219 3,311,407 


Property Taxes Receivable 2,293,626 2,293,626 


Fines Receivable, Net ofAllowance 

for Doubtful Accounts 174,018 174,018 

Interfund Receivable (Payable) 4,000 (4,000) • 
Prepaid Expenses 1,181,880 1,181,880 

Note Receivable 25,947,927 25,947,927 

Capitalized Bond Issue Cost, Net 102,189 102,189 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,139,980 1,139,980 

Capital Assets, Net ofAccumulated Depreciation 6,871,985 29,297,684 36,169,669 

Total Assets 48,311,687 35,996,775 84,308,462 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 2,500,508 79,461 2,579,969 


Deferred Revenue 2,293,626 2,293,626 


Compensated Absences 543,544 54,664 598,208 


Long Term Liabilities: 

Due Within One Year· Capital Related 500,626 792,828 1,293,454 


Due Beyond One Year - Capital Related 5,292,407 11,435,477 16,727,884 


Due Beyond One Year - Non-Capital Related 25,947,927 25,947,927 


Total Liabilities 37,078,638 12,362,430 49,441,068 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 2,218,932 17,069,379 19,288,311 
 • 
Restricted Net Assets: 

Expendable: 

Debt Service 879,693 879,693 


Public Safety 289,370 289,370 


Culture & Recreation 1,466,757 1,466,757 


Unrestricted 6,378,297 6,564,966 12,943,263 

Total Net Assets $ 11,233,049 $ 23,634,345 $ 34,867,394 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 


YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 


Net (Expenses) Revenue 
Pro/ijram Revenues and Chan~es in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Prim!!!! Government 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type 

Functions/Prograrns Ex~enses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 
Govenunental Activities 

General Government $ 2,205,566 $ 141,755 $ $ $ (2,063,811) $ $ (2,063,811) 
Public Safety 5,659,402 542,371 74,768 (5,042,263) (5,042,263) 
Public Service 1,918,209 400,894 309,208 (1,208,107) (1,208,107) 
Culture and Recreation 1,824,609 320,075 (1,504,534) (1,504,534) 
Interest on Long-Term Liabilities 233,404 !233,404l (233,404~ 

• Total Governmental Activities 11,841,190 684,126 795,737 309,208 pO,052,119) (10,052,119) 

Business-Type Activities 
Sewer 2,659,926 2,617,561 (42,365) (42;365) 
Solid Waste 1,382,205 1,566,979 184,774 184,774 
Interest on Long-Term Liabilities 293,588 ~293,588~ !293,588~ 

Total Business-Type Activities 4,335,719 4,184,540 ~151,179l ~151, I 79) 

Total Government $ 16,176,909 $ 4,868,666 $ 795,737 $ 309,208 (I 0,052, 119) (151,179) (10,203,298) 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property 
Sales 
Franchise 
Gasoline 
Pro-Rata Road 
Other Permits and Taxes 

Non-Restricted Grants 
Investment Earnings 
Other 
Loan Forgiveness- ARRA 

3,405,400 
6,353,325 

520,897 
13,710 

144,686 
123,768 

7,294 
72,346 

201,842 
87,845 

3,870,996 

3,405,400 
6,353,325 

520,897 
13,710 

144,686 
123,768 

7,294 
160,191 
201,842 

3,870,996 

• 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets, Beginning 

Prior Period Adjustment 

Net Asset, Beginning - Restated 

Net Assets, Ending $ 

10,843,268 

791,149 

10,439,916 

1
1
984 

10,441,900 

11,233,049 $ 

3,958,841 

3,807,662 

19,826,683 

19,826,683 

23,634,345 $ 

14,802,109 

4,598,811 

30,266,599 

1,984 

30,268,583 

34,867,394 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

• 
9 




CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

Major Funds 
Gas & Water Other Total 

Surface Water Govenunental Govenunental 

General Fund Project Funds Funds 

ASSETS: 

Cash $ 5,058,299 $ $ 2,579,595 $ 7,637,894 


Property Taxes Receivable 1,679,839 613,787 2,293,626 


IntergovenunentaJ Receivables 534,998 2,284,526 138,664 2,958,188 


Fines Receivable, Net 174,018 174,018 


Prepaid Expense 1,181,880 1,181,880 


Note Receivable 25,947,927 25,947,927 
 • 
Due from Sewer Enterprise Fund 4,000 4,000 

Total Assets $ 7,451,154 $ 28,232,453 $ 4,513,926 $ 40,197,533 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 79,168 $ 2,284,526 $ 95,523 $ 2,459,217 
Unearned Revenue 1,853,857 613,787 2,467,644 

Total Liabilities 1,933,025 2,284,526 709,310 4,926,861 

FUND BALANCES: 
Nonspendable 

Prepaid Items 1,181,880 1,181,880 
Restri cted for 


Public Safety 289,370 289,370 

Debt Service 920,984 920,984 

Culture and Recreation 918,414 918,414 


Committed to 

Culture and Recreation 545,773 545,773 

Public Works 25,947,927 25,947,927 


Unassigned 5,518,129 {51,805l 5,466,324 

•Total Fund Balances 5,518,129 25,947,927 3,804,616 35,270,672 

Total Liabilities and 

Fund Balances $ 7,451,154 $ 28,232,453 $ 4,513,926 $ 40,197,533 


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Amount 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 	 $ 35,270,672 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 

of net assets are different because: 


1. 	 Certain assets are not available to pay current period expenditures and therefore are not 
reported in this fund fmancial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities 
of the Statement of Net Assets. 174,018 

2. 	 Capital assets are used in governmental activities but are not financial resources, 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation 
of$4,355,797. (Note 4) 8,011,965 

3. 	 Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds. (Note 5) 
General Obligation Bonds Payable (5,380,000) 
Bond Premiums (37,140) 
Bond Discounts 22,562 
Other Loans Payable (26,346,382) 
Compensated Absences (543,544) 

4. 	 Discounts on debt issuance are recorded as other financing uses in the governmental 
funds; however, they are recorded as an asset and amortized in the government-wide 
statements. 102,189 

5. 	 Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and therefore, is not 
reported in the funds. (41,291) 

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities 	 $ 11,233,049 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Fines and Forfeits 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Service 
Culture and Recreation 

Capital Outlay 
Debt Service: 

Principal 
Interest and Other Charges 

Total Expenditures 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Major Funds 

General Fund 

Gas & Water 
Surface Waler 

Project 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 2,171,418 
644,665 

6,105,531 
153,687 
530,439 
225,840 

9,831,580 

$ $ 755,327 

1,997,083 

241180 
2)76,590 

2,259,972 
5,622,760 
1,751,905 

172,386 

3,964 
308,678 

1,824,609 
904,939 

9,807,023 

457,810 
288,457 

3,788,457 

Total 

Governmental 


Funds 


$ 2,926,745 
644,665 

8,102,614 
153,687 
530,439 

25°1°20 
12,608,170 • 

2,259,972 

5,626,724 

2,060,583 

1,824,609 

1,077,325 


457,810 

288,457 


13,595,480 


Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 

Expenditures 24,557 p,011, 8672 (987,310) 


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Proceeds ofloans 14,937,071 34,073 
Refunding bonds issued 2,280,000 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 21,002 
Premiums on bonds issued 37,530 
Loan transfer to gas & water (9,547,000) 
Trans fers in 15,400 142,533 
Transfers out (142,533) (15,400) 
Payment to bond refunding escrow agent (2,248,121) 
Discount on bonds issued {22,8002 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {106, 131 2 5,390,071 207,815 

14,971,144 
2,280,000 

21,002 
37,530 

(9,547,000) 
157,933 

(157,933) 
(2,248,121 ) 

(22,8002 
5,491,755 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (81,574) 5,390,071 (804,052) 4,504,445 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5,599,703 20,557,856 4,608,668 30,766,227 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 5,518,129 $ 25,947,927 $ 3,804,616 $ 35,270,672 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH~ MISSISSIPPI 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 


EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 


Amount 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 	 $ 4,504,445 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 

of activities are different because: 


1. 	 Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental 
activities report depreciation to allocate those expenditures over the life of the 
assets. Capital assets purchased amounted to $1,525,676 and the depreciation 
expense amounted to $352,231. (Note 4) 1,173,445 

2. 	 Governmental funds report proceeds from the disposal of 
assets while governmental activities report net gain or loss. (6,029) 

3. 	 Payment of principal on long-term liabilities is reported as an expenditure 
in the governmental funds, but the payment reduces long-term liabilites 
in the statement of net assets. (Note 5) 457,810 

Refunded Bonds Payable are reported as other fmancing uses in govenmental 
funds, but decreases long-term liabilities in the statement ofnet assets. 2,200,000 

Governmental Funds report long-term debt transferred to other governments as other 
uses, but the transfer reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 9,547,000 

4. 	 Governmental funds report long-term debt proceeds as other sources, while 
governmental activities in the government wide statements report long-term 
debt proceeds as an increase in liabilities. (17,251,144) 

5. 	 Increase in fines receivable is recorded as an adjustment to income. 8,805 

.. 6. Decrease in accrued interest payable is recorded as an adjustment 
to interest expense. 103,412 

7. Issuance costs, premiums, and discounts on debt issuances are recorded as expenditures 
and other financing use in the governmental funds; however, they are deferred and 
amortized as expenses in the government-wide statements: 
Bond Premiums 
Bond Discount 
Issuance Cost 

(37,530) 
22,800 
46,609 

8. 

9. 

Increase in compensated absences is reported as an adjustment to various functions. 

Decrease in bond issuance cost. 

24,931 

(3,405) 

Change in Net Assets $ 791,149 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 


YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Business-Type - Ente:.:erise Funds 

ASSETS: 
Current Assets 

Cash in Bank 
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance) 

Total Current Assets 

$ 

Major Funds 
Sewer Sanitation 
System Enterprise 
Fund Fund 

5,738,002 $ 611,870 
222,268 130,951 

5,960,270 742,821 

$ 

Total 

6,349,872 
353,219 

6,703,091 • 
Noncurrent Assets 

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

28,794,237 
28,794,237 

503,447 
503,447 

29,297,684 
29,297,684 

Total Assets 34,754,507 1,246,268 36,000,775 

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Due to General Fund 
Long-Term Liabilities, Due Within One Year 

Total Current Liabilities 

53,408 
25,908 

4,000 
771 1°56 
854,372 

145 

21,772 
21,917 

53,408 
26,053 

4,000 
792,828 
876,289 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated Absences Payable 
Long-Term Liabilities, Due Beyond One Year 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

31,069 
11,4131105 
11,444,174 

23,595 
22,372 
45,967 

54,664 
11,435,477 
11,490,141 

Total Liabilities 12,298,546 67,884 12,366,430 

NET ASSETS: 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt 
Unrestricted 

16,610,076 
5,845,885 

459,303 
719,081 

17,069,379 
6,564,966 

Total Net Assets $ 22,455,961 $ 1,178,384 $ 23,634,345 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 


PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Business-T~e Activities - Ente!:Erise Funds 

OPERA TING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services 

Total Operating Revenues WI 

OPERA TING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and Benefits 
Materials and Supplies 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Other Operating Expenses 
Depreciation and Amortization 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Intergovernmental Revenues 
Loan Forgiveness - ARRA 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 

.. 
 Contributions and Transfers 


Changes in Net Assets 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets, End of Year 

Major Funds 
Sewer Sanitation 
System Enterprise 
Fund Fund 

$ 2,6 17,56 I $ 1,566,979 

2,617,561 1,566,979 

620,520 685,295 
205,509 120,629 
266,723 
287,742 474,667 

1,279,432 101,614 

2,659,926 1,382,205 

(42,365) 184,774 

28,132 
3,870,996 

53,256 6,457 
(291,943) (1,645) 

3,632,309 32,944 

3,589,944 217,718 

3,589,944 217,718 

18,866,017 960,666 

$ 22,455,961 $ 11178,384 

Total 

$ 4,184,540 

4,184,540 

1,305,815 
326,138 
266,723 
762,409 

1,381,046 

4,042,13 I 

142,409 

28,132 
3,870,996 

59,713 
(293,588) 

3,665,253 

3,807,662 

3,807,662 

19,826,683 

$ 23,634,345 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. .. 15 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 


PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Business - Type Activities - Ente!:Erise Funds 
Major Funds 

Sewer Sanitation 
System Enterprise 
Fund Fund Total 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Cash Received from Customers and Users $ 2,653,441 $ 1,565,084 $ 4,218,525 

Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees {1,350,057l {1,284,2572 ~2,634,314) 


Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,303,384 280,827 1,584,211 

• 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Acquisition of Capital Assets (687,460) (155,152) (842,612) 
Loan Proceeds 240,590 240,590 
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (4,754,473) (19,291) (4,773,764) 
Interest Paid ~293,603l {1,6452 (295,248) 

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related 

Financing Activities (5,494,946) (176,088) (5,671,034) 


Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Other Income 3,870,996 28,132 3,899,128 
Interest Revenue Received 53,256 6,457 59,713 

Cash Provided by Investing Activities 3,924,252 34,589 3,958,841 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (267,310) 139,328 (127,982) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 6,005,312 472,542 6,4771854 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 5,738,002 $ 611,870 $ 6,349,872 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income $ ~42,3652 $ 184 774 $ 142,409
1

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided •by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,279,432 101,614 1,381,046 

Accounts Receivable 35,880 (1,895) 33,985 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 34,063 (467) 33,596 

Compensated Absences Payable p,6262 p,1992 ~6,825) 


Tota] Adjustments 1,345,749 96,053 1,441,802 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 1,303,384 $ 280,827 $ 1,584,211 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Private Purpose Agency 
Trust Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash in Bank $ 24,026 $ 98,709 

Total Assets 24,026 98,709 

LIABILITIES 

Amount Held for Others 98,709 

Total Liabilities $ 98,709 

NET ASSETS 

Held in Trust $ 24,026 

• 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 


Private-Purpose 
Trust Fund 

ADDITIONS: 
Interest Income $ 201 
Lot Sales 650 

Total Revenues 851 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Other • 

Changes in Net Assets 851 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 23,175 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 24,026 

• 


The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2011 


1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Except as described below under "A. Financial Reporting Entity", the accompanying financial statements of the City of 
Corinth, Mississippi, have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The most significant of the City's accounting policies are 
described below. 

The City of Corinth was incorporated March, 1855, and operates under an Aldermen-Mayor form of government. The 
city's major operations include public safety (fire and police protection), public service (street and drainage services), 
culture and recreation, and general government. In addition, the City owns and operates a sewer system and solid waste 
system. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity .. 
These financial statements present the City's primary government only. Management has chosen to omit from these 
financial statements the following component units, which have a significant operational or financial relationship 
with the City. Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial 
position of the reporting entity of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, and the changes in its financial position and its 
cash flows, where applicable, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Corinth Utility Commission Corinth Library Commission 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net assets and 
a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information 
for the primary government. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the primary government as a 
whole. They include all funds of the primary government except for fiduciary funds. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type 
activities rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Governmental and business-type activities are 
reported separately. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial condition of the city by activity type at year-end. The ,. 	 government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function or program of the City's activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 
charges paid by the recipient of the goods or service offered by the program and grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues not classified as 
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of 
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each function is self-balancing or draws from 
the general revenues of the city. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund financial statements of the primary government are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be 
separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three 
major categories: governmental, business-type and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within 
governmental and business-type categories. 

• 	
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•CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, activities are presented using the 

economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 

earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, 

gains, losses, assets, and liabilities reSUlting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when 

the exchange takes place. Program revenues on the Statement of Activities consist primarily of charges for 

services and state and federal awards. 


In the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are presented using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 

"measurable and available". Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. 

Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year end. Property taxes, state 
 • 
appropriations and federal awards associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 

accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditures (including capital 

outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and 

interest which is reported when due. 


The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for aU financial resources of the City, 

except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Gas and Water Surface Project - This special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of a loan 

which is being used to aid the Corinth Utility Commission in an expansion project, and the eventual 

repayment of the loan. 


All other governmental funds not meeting the criteria established for major funds are presented in the other 

governmental column ofthe fund financial statements. 


Additionally, the City reports the following fund types and funds, when applicable: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources (other than capital projects) that are legally restricted for specific expenditure purposes. 
Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. 
Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for •the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Private-purpose Trust Funds - Private-purpose trust funds are used to report all trust arrangements, other 
than those reported elsewhere, under which the principal and income benefit individuals, private 
organizations or other governments. 
Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the district in a purely custodial 
capacity (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Sewer System Fund - This fund accounts for the activities of the City's sewer systems operations. 
Sanitation Enterprise Fund - This fund accounts for the activities of the City's solid waste operations. 

D. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, drainage 
systems, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. Governmental activities capital assets, other than infrastructure assets, are 
defmed by the government as assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year, an initial, individual cost 
greater than $5,000 for furniture and equipment; $25,000 for building improvements and improvements other than 
buildings; and $50,000 for buildings. These capitalization thresholds are consistent with the suggested thresholds in 
the Mississippi Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide, issued by the Mississippi Office of the State Auditor. 
Business-type activities capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost greater than $500 and an estimated 
useful life greater than one year. 

As allowable under GASB 34 for Phase III governments, the City has elected to report only prospectively the cost of 
general infrastructure assets. 

All property, plant and equipment are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is 
not available. Donated property, plant and equipment are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date 
donated. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis using the following useful lives. 

Land N/A 
Buildings 40 years 
Building Improvements 20 years 
Improvements other than Buildings 20 years 
Infrastructure 20 years 
Furniture and Equipment 3 - 10 years 
Sewer System Infrastructure 50 years 

E. Long-Term Liabilities .. 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business­
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance 
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life ofthe bonds. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure 

of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not erop loyed as an 

extension of formal budgetary integration of the City funds. 


G. Cash and Other Deposits 

The City deposits excess funds in the financial institutions selected by the City board. State statutes specifY 

how these depositories are to be selected. 


Cash consists of amounts on deposit in demand accounts. Other deposits consist of certificates of deposit and 

other highly liquid investments. Cash and other deposits are valued at cost. 
 • 

H. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful 

accounts. This allowance is estimated by analyzing the allowance for doubtful accounts percentage of 

receivables from prior years. 


I. Compensated Absences 

Employees of the City accumulate sick and personal leave at a minimum amount as required by state law or 

at a greater amount provided by City policy. The City pays for unused personal leave for employees as 

provided by City policy for each department. 


The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as a long-term liability in the government-wide 

statements. 


J. Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purpose of cash flows, the Enterprise Funds consider allliquid investments (including restricted assets) 

with a maturity ofthree months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 


K. Equity Classifications 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: • 
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components; 

1. 	 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt Consists of capital assets including restricted assets, net 

of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes 

or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, constructions or improvement of those 

assets. 


2. 	 Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external 

groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law 

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 


3. 	 Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested 

in capital assets, net of related debt." 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

K. Equity Classifications (continued) 

Governmental Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five classifications offund 
balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. The nonspendable fund balance 
classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form pre-paid 
items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance compromises the remaining four classifications: restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned. 

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a) 
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed fond balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the City Board of Alderman the government's highest 
level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless 
the City Board removes the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the commitment. This 
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have 
been specifically committed for use in satisfYing those contractual requirements. 

Assignedfond balance. This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City's "intent" to be used 
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Board and City Manager have the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balances include all remaining 
amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, 
that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed. No amounts have been 
assigned as of September 30, 2011. 

Unassigned fond balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. It is also 
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use externally 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned, and unassigned-in order as needed. 

L. Inter-fund Transactions and Balances 

During the course of normal operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to 
other funds" on the governmental funds balance sheet. These interfund balances are eliminated in the Statement of 
Net Assets . 

• M. Property Tax Revenues 

Numerous statutes exist under which the Board of Aldermen may levy property taxes. The selection of authorities is 
made based on the objectives and responsibilities of the City. Restrictions associated with property tax levies vary 
with the statutory authority. The amount of increase in certain property taxes is limited by state law. Generally, this 
restriction provides that these tax levies shall produce no more than 110% of the amount which resulted from the 
assessments of the previous year. 

The Board of Aldermen, each year in September, levies property taxes for the ensuing fiscal year which begins 
October 1, Real property taxes become a lien on January I of the current year, and personal property taxes become a 
lien on March I of the current year. Taxes on both real and personal property, however, are due on or before 
February I of the next succeeding year. Taxes on motor vehicles and mobile homes become a lien and are due in the 
month that coincides with the month of original purchase. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require property taxes to be recognized at 
the levy date if measurable and available. All property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are 
levied, Motor vehicle and mobile home taxes do not meet the measurability and collectibility criteria for property 
tax recognition because the lien and due date cannot be established until the date of original purchase occurs. 
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•CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

M. Property Tax Revenues (continued) 

Section 35-57-1 et seq., Mississippi Code 1972, requires that the City levy and collect all taxes for and on behalf of 

the municipal separate school district. Section 39-3-7, Mississippi Code 1972, authorized the City to levy and collect 

a tax not in excess of three mills for the support of any public library system located within the municipality. Ad 

valorem taxes collected and settled in accordance with the above-noted statutory authorities are not recognized as 

revenues and expenditures of the City. 


N. Intergovernmental Revenues in Governmental Funds 

Intergovernmental revenues, consisting of grants, entitlements and shared revenues, are usually recorded in the 

Governmental Funds when measurable and available. However, the "available" criterion applies for certain federal 
 • 
grants and shared revenues when the expenditure is made because the expenditure is the prime factor for 

determining eligibility. Similarly, if cost sharing or matching requirements exist, revenue recognition depends on 

compliance with these requirements. 


O. Estimates 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these fmancial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures/expenses. Actual results could 

vary from the estimates that were used. 


P. Implementation ofnew accounting principles 

For the year ending September 30,2011, the City implemented the following statement of financial accounting standards 

issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board: 


GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Defmitions 

GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments 

GASB Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies 

GASB Statement No. 54 establishes standards for fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily 

on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in 

governmental funds. Additionally, the defmitions of the general fund, special revenue fund type, capital projects fund 

type, debt service fund type, and permanent fund type are clarified by the provisions in the Statement. Interpretations of 

certain terms within the defmition ofthe special revenue fund type have been provided and, for some governments, those 
 • 
interpretations may affect the activities they choose to report in those funds. The capital projects fund type defmition also 

was classified for better alignment with the needs of preparers and users. Defmition of other governmental fund types 

also have been modified for clarity and consistency. 


GASB Statement No. 53 and Statement No. 58 have no reporting implication for the City ofCorinth. 

2. Cash and Other Deposits 

The collateral for public entities' deposits in financial institutions is held in the name of the State Treasurer under 
a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5, Miss. Code 
Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the 
State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against 
those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be 
liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation. 
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• CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

2. Cash and Other Deposits (continued) 

The carrying amount of the City's deposits with financial institutions was $14,110,501, and the bank balance was 
$14,545,998. 

3. Note Receivable 

Note Receivable consists of advances to the Corinth Utility Commission for the purpose of upgrading the 
Commission's water storage, treatment, and distribution facilities. This funding is provided for by loans from the 
State of Mississippi Department of Health (MDH) (see Note 5 on long-tenn liabilities). No fonnal, signed 
agreement between the City and the Commission exists for the repayment of this note receivable. However, the 
Commission has adopted a resolution pledging and committing revenue funds received to repay these advances 
in the exact amount of the loan payable repayment schedule. See Notes 5 and 13 for additional infonnation 
regarding these loans from MDH. 

• 
4. Capital Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets during the fiscal year: 

Adjustments/ 
Balance Completed Balance 
1011/10 Additions Retirements Construction 9/30/2011 

Governmental Activities 
Non-de12reciable ca12ital assets 

Land $ 449,644 $ $ $ $ 449,644 
Construction in progress 1,998,591 1,247,750 ~2,556,005l 690,336 

Total non-depreciable 
capital assets 2,448,235 1,247,750 ~2,556,005l 1,139,980 

DeQreciable caQital assets: 
Buildings 3,317,797 631,554 3,949,351 

Infrastructure - Streets 2,250,205 1,924,451 4,174,656 
Mobile equipment 2,626,658 104,603 54,395 19,839 2,696,705 

Furniture and equipment 233,747 173,323 407,070 

Total depreciable capital assets 8,428,407 277,926 54,395 2,575,844 11,227,782 

Less accumulated deQreciation 
Buildings 1,534,675 62,863 1,597,538 

Infrastructure - streets 261,411 146,113 407,524 
Mobile equipment 2,167,348 78,443 48,366 17,855 2,215,280

• Furniture and equipment 70,643 64,812 135,455 
Total accumulated depreciation 4,034,077 352,231 48,366 17,855 4,355,797 

Total depreciable 
capital assets, net 4,394,330 p4,3052 6,029 2,557,989 6,871,985 

Total Governmental activities 
capital assets, net $ 6,842,565 $ 1,173,445 $ 6,029 $ 1,984 $ 8,011,965 

Adjustment was made to capital assets to add assets omitted in prior years of $1 ,984 net. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


4. Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental functions: 

General Government $ 101,964 
Public Safety 73,906 
Public Service 176,361 

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 352,231 

Commitments on construction contracts at September 30,2011, are as follows: 

Cardinal Drive Improvements $ 8,245 
Oakland School Bridge 738 

Total $ 8,983 • 
The following is a summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets during the fiscal year: 

Balance Completed Balance 
10/1/10 Additions Retirements Construction 9/30111 


Business-we Activities 

Non-de12reciable ca12ital assets 


Land $ 17,500 $ $ $ $ 17,500 

Construction in progress 3,675,703 224,350 ~3,900,053) 


Total non-depreciable 

capital assets 3,693,203 224,350 {3,900,053l 171500 


Deureciable ca12ital assets: 

Sewer plant and buildings 34,424,707 3,900,053 38,324,760 

Mobile equipment 1,358,010 601,419 1,959,429 

Furniture and equipment 561,590 16,842 578,432 


Total depreciable capital assets 36,344,307 618,261 3,900,053 40,862,621 
Less accumulated de12reciation 


Sewer plant and buildings 9,021,347 1,177,177 10,198,524 

Mobile equipment 845,392 163,465 1,008,857 

Furniture and equipment 334,653 40,404 375,057 


Total accumulated depreciation 10,201,392 1,381,046 11,582,438 
Total depreciable 

capital assets, net 26,142,915 {762,7852 3,900,053 29,280,183 • 
Total Business-type activities 

capital assets, net $ 29,836,118 $ ~538,4352 $ $ $ 29,297,683 

Depreciation expense was charged to the following business-type functions: 

Sewer 
Solid Waste 

$ 1,279,432 
101,614 

Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 1,381,046 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


5. Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt of the City's governmental activities for the year ended 
September 30,2011: 

Amounts due 
Balance Balance within one 
10/1/10 Additions Reductions 9130111 ~ear 

A. 	 General Obligation 
Bonds Payable $ 5,745,000 $ 2,280,000 $ 2,645,000 $ 5,380,000 $ 485,000 
Add: Bond Premiums 37,530 390 37,140 
Less: Bond Discounts (22,800) (238) (22,562) 

B. 	 Other Loans Payable 20,935,048 14,971,144 9,559,810 26,346,382 15,626 
C. 	 Compensated Absences 

Payable 568,475 24,931 543,544., 
Total 	 $ 27,248,523 $ 17,265,874 $ 12,229,893 $ 32,284,504 $ 500,626 

A. General Obligation Bonds Payable. 

Debt currently outstanding is as follows: 
Interest Issue Maturity Amount Amount 

Description Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding 
Series 2011 2.0 - 2.5% 9/612011 411 12018 2,280,000 2,280,000 
Series 2009 3.3 - 4.7% 12128/2009 12/1/2029 3,200,000 3,100,000 

$ 	 5,480,000 $ 5,380,000 

The following is a schedule by years ofthe total payments due on this debt: 

Year Ending 


June 30, Principal Interest Total 
2012 $ 485,000 $ 147,597 $ 632,597 
2013 480,000 154,965 634,965 
2014 500,000 142,278 642,278 
2015 510,000 129,055 639,055 
2016 530,000 115,445 645,445 

2017-2021 	 1,070,000 425,243 1,495,243 
2022 - 2026 	 910,000 270,337 1,180,337 
2027 - 2030 	 895,000 74,697 969,697 

• 
 Total $ 5,380,000 $ 1,459,617 $ 6,839,617 


The general obligation bonds were issued to provide funds for the construction of major capital facilities. These bonds 
are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 

This debt will be retired from the Municipal Bond and Interest Fund. 

Current Refunding - On September 6, 2011, the City issued $2,280,000 in general obligation refunding bonds with an interest 
rate of2.0% - 2.5% to refund $2,200,000 of the following outstanding bond issues: 

A verage Outstanding 
Interest Amount 

Issue 	 Rate Refunded 
--~~":-:-

General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998 4.70% 1,175,000 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001 4.00% 1,025,000 

The City refunded the above bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 7 years by almost $129,657 and to 
obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of 
$113,130. 

• 	
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•CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

5. Long-Term Debt (continued) 

B. Other Loans Payable 

Other loans payable consists the following: 

Interest Issue Maturity Amount Amount 


Description Rate Date Date Issued Outstanding 


CAP Loan 3.00% 11/1/2010 11/1/2030 $ 411,265 $ 398,455 


The following is a schedule by years ofthe total payments due on this debt: 

Years Ending • 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 $ 15,626 $ 11,744 $ 27,370 

2013 16,102 11,269 27,371 

2014 16,591 10,779 27,370 

2015 17,096 10,275 27,371 

2016 17,616 9,755 27,371 


2017-2021 96,450 40,402 136,852 

2022-2026 112,038 24,814 136,852 

2027-2031 106,936 7,107 114,043 


Total $ 398,455 $ 126,145 $ 524,600 


The CAP Loan was issued to provide funds for the construction of a new fire station. 

The debt will be retired from the General Fund. 

Advances received, in the amount of$20,163,771, through September 30, 2011, from a State of Mississippi Department 

of Health "Drinking Water Systems Improvements Revolving Loan Fund" (DWSIRLF) loan (#DWI-H280064-04-0). 

The loan, of up to $24,751,500, is being used to aid the Corinth Utility Commission in upgrading its water system with a 

new Surface Water Treatment Plant. The interest rate is 1.95% and repayment terms, based on the total loan amount, are 

preliminarily as follows: Payments of $125,919 per month for a period of237 months, to begin in March, 2012. The 

monthly payments will be withheld from the City's sales tax reimbursements. All amounts are shown as long-term until 

the actual, final amortization schedule is established. See Note 13 for additional information regarding this loan. 


Advances received, in the amount of $9,547,000, through September 30, 2011, from a State of Mississippi Department 

of Health "Drinking Water Systems Improvements Revolving Loan Fund" (DWSIRLF) loan (#DWI-H280064-05-0). 

The loan, of $9,547,000, of which $2,136,750 is American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding (which 

was forgiven upon successful completion ofthe project within the ARRA guidelines) was used to aid the Corinth Utility 

Commission in upgrading its water system with new transmission and distribution lines. The City received approval 

from the Mississippi Department of Health (MDH) to transfer this loan to Corinth Utility Commission. The Corinth 

Utility Commission signed a new note date April 5, 2011, with MDH for this debt, thereby relieving the City of its 

liability. 


Advances received, in the amount of $1,059,156, through September 30, 2011, from a State of Mississippi Department 

of Health "Drinking Water Systems Improvements Revolving Loan Fund" (DWSIRLF) loan (#DWI-L020002-06-0). 

The loan, of up to $5,000,000, of which $1,250,000 is American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding 

(which will be forgiven upon successful completion of the project within the ARRA guidelines) is being used to aid the 

Corinth Utility Commission in upgrading its water system with new intake and pumping facilities. The interest rate is 

1.95% and repayment terms, based on the total loan amount, are preliminarily as follows: Payments of $19,077 per 

month for a period of237 months, to begin in May, 2012. The monthly payments will be withheld from the City's sales 

tax reimbursements. All amounts are shown as long-term until the actual, final amortization schedule is established. See 

Note 13 for additional information regarding this loan. 
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• CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

5. Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Advances received, in the amount of $4,725,000, through September 30, 20 II, from a State of Mississippi Department 
of Health "Drinking Water Systems Improvements Revolving Loan Fund" (DWSIRLF) loan (#DWI-L020002-07-0). 
The loan, of up to $5,000,000, is being used to aid the Corinth Utility Commission in upgrading its water system with a 
new Raw Water Transmission Line. The interest rate is 1.95% and repayment terms, based on the total loan amount, are 
preliminarily as follows: Payments of $25,437 per month for a period of 237 months, to begin in May, 2Of2. The 
monthly payments will be withheld from the City's sales tax reimbursements. All amounts are shown as long-term until 
the actual, final amortization schedule is established. See Note 13 for additional information regarding this loan. 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt of the City's business-type activities for the year ended 
September 30, 2011: 

• Amounts due 
Balance Balance within one 
1011/10 Additions Reductions 9/30111 l:ear 

A. Revenue Bonds Payable $ 115,000 $ $ 115,000 $ $ 
B. Other Loans Payable 16,583,044 240,590 4,639,473 12,184,161 771,056 
C. Capital Lease Payable 63,435 19,291 44,144 21,772 
D. Compensated Absences 

Payable 	 61,490 6,826 54,664 
Total $ 16,822,969 $ 240,590 $ 4,780,590 $ 12,282,969 $ 792,828 

A. Revenue Bonds Payable. 

The Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1994, were fully retired during the year. 

B. Other Loans Payable. 

Other loans payable consists of two loans from the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality State 
Revolving Loan Fund. Payments for these loans are withheld from sales tax payments due to the City. 

Advances on WPCRLF loan number SRF-C-28055-04-0-ARSR totaled $3,888,589. This project was completed, and 
$3,870,996 of this loan was forgiven, which represents ARRA funding. Also, the remaining balance of $ I 7,623 was 
repaid. 

• 
 Debt currently outstanding is as follows: 


Interest Issue Maturity Amount Amount 
DescriEtion Rate Date Date Issued Outstandin~ 
State Revolving Loan 

Fund Loan Payable 4.5% 10/18/1995 11/1/2017 $ 3,433,800 $ 1,423,734 
State Revolving Loan 

Fund Loan Payable 2.00% 10/6/2006 12/1/2027 12,655,057 10,760,427 

$ 16,088,857 $ 12,184,161 
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Long-Term Debt (continued) 

B. Other Loans Payable (continued). 

The following is a schedule by years of the total payments due on this debt, excluding loan #SRF-C280855-04-0-ARSR 

which has no established amortization schedule at September 30,2011: 


Year Ending 
September 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 $ 771,056 $ 269,913 $ 1,040,969 

2013 791,897 249,072 1,040,969 

2014 813,402 227~67 1,040,969 

2015 835,595 205,374 1,040,969 

2016 858,501 182,468 1,040,969 
 ..

2017-2021 3,557,276 632,428 4,189,704 

2022-2026 3,559,063 281,685 3,840,748 

2027-2028 957,371 12,815 970,186 


Total $ 12,144,161 $ 2,061,322 $ 14,205,483 

This debt will be retired from the Sewer System Enterprise Fund. 

C. Capital Leases Payable 

The City has entered into various lease agreements to fmance the acquisition of various equipment. These leases qualifY as 

capital leases for accounting purposes. The following is a summary by years of the total payments required by the lease 

agreements: 


Year Ending 
September 30, Principal Interest Total 


2012 $ 21,772 $ 1,067 $ 22,839 

2013 22,372 466 22,838 


Total $ 44!144 $ 1233 $ 45,677 

Compensated Absences Payable. 

As more fully explained in Note I (I), compensated absences payable is adjusted on an annual basis as required by 

Section 37-7-307(5), Miss. Code Ann. (1972). Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the 

employees' salaries were paid. 
 .. 

6. No Commitment Debt 

No commitment debt is repaid by the entities for whom the debt was issued and includes debt that either bears the city's 

name or for which a moral responsibility may exist that is not an enforceable promise to pay. No commitment debt 

explicitly states the absence of obligation by the city other than possibly an agreement to assist creditors in exercising 

their rights in the event of default. The City of Corinth and Alcorn County issued this debt on a basis of 45% city and 

55% county. Because a default may adversely affect the city's own ability to borrow, the principal amount of such debt 

outstanding at year end is disclosed as follows: 


Balance at City 
9/30111 Share 


Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 $ 82,945,000 $ 37,325,250 

Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006B 2A65,000 U09!250 


Total $ 85,410,000 $ 38,434,500 
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• CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

7. Property Taxes 

The millage rate for the City for October 1,2010, through September 30,2011, was 95.0 mills, broken down as follows: 

School: Public School Purposes 43.00 Mills 
School: School Three Mill Notes 3.00 Mills 
School: General Obligation Bonds 12.00 Mills 
School: Vo-Tech Fund 1.20 Mills 
General Revenue and General Improvement 26.30 Mills 
Library 1.50 Mills 
Parks and Playgrounds 2.00 Mills 
Municipal bond and Interest 6.00 Mills 

Total 95.00 Mills 

The distribution of taxes to funds was found to be in accordance with prescribed tax levies, and uncollected taxes were 
determined to be properly handled. 

8. Joint Ventures 

The City of Corinth is a participant with Alcorn County in a joint venture, authorized by Section 61-3-5, Miss. Code 
Ann. (1972), to operate the Corinth-Alcorn County Airport. The joint venture was created to provide an airport for the 
area, and is governed by a five member board of commissioners appointed as follows: Alcorn County, two; City of 
Corinth, two; jointly, one. The City contributed $325,842, including expenditures from grants, to support the operation 
of this joint venture during the year ended September 30, 2011. Complete financial statements for the Corinth-Alcorn 
County Airport can be obtained from the Corinth-Alcorn County Airport, 56 County Road 613, Corinth, MS 38834. 

The City of Corinth is a participant with Alcorn County in a joint venture to operate the Siege and Battle of Corinth 
Commission. The joint venture was created to promote tourism, and is governed by a five member Board appointed as 
follows: Alcorn County, two; City of Corinth, two; jointly, one. Complete financial statements for the Siege and Battle 
of Corinth Commission can be obtained from Siege and Battle of Corinth Commission, P.O. Box 45, Corinth, MS 
38835. 

The City of Corinth is a participant with Alcorn County in a joint venture, authorized by Section 41-13-15, Miss. Code 
Ann. (1972), to operate the Magnolia Regional Health Center. The joint venture was created to provide a community 
hospital for the area, and is governed by a five member board of directors, two appointed by the county board of 
supervisors, two appointed by the city and one jointly appointed. Complete financial statements for the Magnolia 
Regional Health Center can be obtained from Magnolia Regional Health Center, 611 Alcorn Drive, Corinth, MS 38834 . 

• 	 The City of Corinth is a participant with Alcorn County in a joint venture, authorized by Section 55-9-1, Miss. Code 
Ann. (1972), to operate the Corinth-Alcorn County Recreation Commission. The joint venture was created to provide 
recreational opportunities for the area and is governed by a five member board. Each entity appoints two of the five 
board members, and the fifth is jointly appointed. The City contributed $415,910 to support the operation of this joint 
venture during the year ended September 30, 2011. Complete financial statements for the Corinth-Alcorn County 
Recreation Commission can be obtained from Corinth-Alcorn County Recreation Commission, P.O. Box 1372, Corinth, 
MS 38835. 

The City of Corinth is a participant with Alcorn County in a joint venture, established by local and private legislation 
(Senate Bill 3219), 1997 Session, to operate the Corinth Area Convention and Visitors Bureau. The joint venture was 
created to promote tourism and is governed by a seven member board of directors. Each entity appoints one board 
member, the Corinth Area Restaurant Association appoints three board members and the Corinth Area Hotel-Motel-Inn­
Bed and Breakfast Association appoints three board members. The joint venture is funded with one-half of a 2 percent 
sales tax on motel and food and beverage sales within the City of Corinth. Complete fmandal statements for the Corinth 
Area Convention and Visitors Bureau can be obtained from Corinth Area Convention and Visitors Bureau, P.O. Box 
2158, Corinth, MS 38835. 
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8. Joint Ventures (Continued) 

The City of Corinth is a participant with Alcorn County in a joint venture, established by local and private legislation 

(Senate Bill 3219), 1997 Session, to operate the Crossroads Arena. The j oint venture was created to operate an arena for 

various events and is governed by a seven member board of directors. Each entity appoints three board members, and the 

seventh is jointly appointed. The City contributed $63,000 to support the operation of this joint venture during the year 

ended September 30, 2011. Complete financial statements for the Crossroads Arena can be obtained from Crossroads 

Arena, 2800 Harper Road, Corinth, MS 38834. 


9. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description. The City of Corinth contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS), a 

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual 

cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by 
 •
State law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available financial 

report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That information may be obtained by 

writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 3920 1-1005 or by 

calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS. 


Funding Policy. PERS members are required to contribute 9.0% of their annual covered salary from October 1, 2010, 

through September 30, 2011, and the City of Corinth is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The 

employer's rate for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, was 12.00% of annual covered payroll. The contribution 

requirements of PERS members are established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The 

City of Corinth's contributions to PERS for the years ending September 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, were $667,354, 

$676,042, and $654,066, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 


10. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation - The City of Corinth is party to legal proceedings, many of which occur in the normal course of governmental 

operations. It is not possible at the present time to estimate outcome or liability, if any, of the City with respect to the 

various proceedings. However, the City's legal counsel does not expect any liability resulting from these lawsuits will 

have a material adverse effect on the fmancial condition ofthe City. 


Federal Grants • The City participates in numerous federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules and 

regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by 

the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the 

grants, refunds of any money received may be required. Accordingly, no provision for any liability that may result has 

been recognized in the City's financial statements. 


•See Note 4 for commitments on construction contracts. 

11. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 

omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Except for the items below, the City carries commercial 

insurance for these risks. Settled claims resulting from these insured risks have not exceeded commercial insurance 

coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 


12. Deficit Fund Balances 

The CDBG Fund had a deficit fund balance at September 30, 2011, in the amount of $1,499, and Infrastructure Bond 
Fund 2009 had deficit fund balance of $50,306. These deficit fund balances could have been eliminated with a transfer 
and/or short-term advance from the General Fund. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


13. Subsequent Events 

Events that occur after the statement of net assets date but before the financial statements were available to be issued 
must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions 
that existed at the statement of net assets date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent 
events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the statement of net assets date require disclosure in 
the accompanying notes. Management has evaluated the activity ofthe city through June 18,2012, (the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued) and concluded that the following subsequent events have occurred that would 
require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 

Advances on DWSIRLF loan number DWI-H0064-04-0 subsequent to September 30, 2011, through June 18, 2012, 
amounted to $3,237,770. 

Advances on DWSIRLF loan number DWI-L020002-06-0 subsequent to September 30, 2011 through June 18, 2012, 
amounted to $3,708,605. 

Advances on DWSIRLF loan number DWI-L20002-07-1 subsequent to September 30, 2011, through June 18, 2012, 
amounted to $275,000. Subsequent to year-end, this project was completed, and $500,000 of this loan was forgiven. Also 
subsequent to year-end and upon completion of the project, the City received approval from the Mississippi Department 
of Health (MDH) to transfer this loan to Corinth Utility Commission. The Corinth Utility Commission signed a new note 
dated March 18,2012, with MDH for this debt, thereby relieving the City ofits liability. 

,. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE GENERAL FUND 


NON~GAAP BASIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Actual 
Budgeted Amounts (NON-GAAP Variances 

Original Final Basis! Original to Final Final to Actual 
REVENUE: 


Taxes $ 2,315,000 $ 2,214,250 $ 2,171,490 $ (100,750) $ (42,760) 

Licenses and Pennits 479,000 480,000 558,014 1,000 78,014 

Intergovernmental 5,811,315 5,953,050 6,113,201 141,735 160,151 

Charges for Services 796,000 153,500 153,687 (642,500) 187 

Fines and Forfeitures 510,000 455,000 530,439 (55,000) 75,439 
 • 
Other 242,475 206,838 225,840 (35,637) 19,002 

Total Revenues 10,153,790 9,462,638 9,752,671 (691,152) 290,033 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 


General Government 3,230,588 2,543,240 2,259,972 687,348 283,268 

Public Safety 5,590,714 5,632,497 5,622,760 (41,783) 9,737 

Public Service 1,529,900 1,724,024 1,751,905 (194,124) (27,881) 

Culture and Recreation 


Capital Outlay 296,250 194,000 172,386 102,250 21,614 

Debt Service 67,848 67,848 


Total Expenditures 10,715,300 10,093,761 9,807,023 621,539 286,738 

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues 
over Expenditures (561,510) (631,123) (54,532) (69,613) 576,771 

OTHER FIANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Proceeds From Sale of Assets 21,002 21,002 
Proceeds of Loans 194,000 (194,000) 
Operating Transfers, Net !200,000l {20216451 ~127, 133} ~2,6451 75,512 

•Total Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) (6,000) (202,645) (106,131) (196,645) (96,514) 


Net Change in Fund Balance (567,510) (833,768) (160,483) (266,258) 673,285 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5,736,709 5,735,709 5,736,709 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 5,169,199 $ 4,901,941 $ 5,576,226 $ (266,258) $ 673,285 

The notes to the required supplementary infonnation are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR mE GAS & WATER SURFACE WATER PROJECT FUND 

NON-GAAP BASIS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Actual 
Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 
(NON-GAAP 

Basis) Ori
Variances 

ginal to Final Final to Actual 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds of Loan 
Transfer to Gas & Water 

19,500,000 
(19,500,000) 

21,000,000 
(21,000,000) 

14,937,071 
(9,547,000) 

1,500,000 
(1,500,000) 

(6,062,929) 
11,453,000 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 5,390,071 5,390,071 

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,390,071 5,390,071 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 20,557,856 20,557,856 20,557,856 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 20,557,856 $ 20,557,856 $ 25,947,927 $ $ 5,390,071 

.. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTRY INFORMATION 


YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 


BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legally adopted budget, the final legally adopted budget, 
the actual data on a NON-GAAP basis (cash), variances between the original budget and final budget, and variances 
between the final budget and actual data. A budgetary comparison is presented for the general fund and each major 
special revenue fund, consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

2. Budget Adoption and Amendments 

The budget is adopted by the Board of Alderman. Amendments can be made on the approved of the Board. For 
further information, see Note 2 to the financial statements. 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

I. 	 Prior to September I, the City submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed operating budget for the fiscal 
year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

2. 	 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 
3. 	 Prior to October I, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 
4. 	 Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Aldermen. 
5. 	 Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 

Governmental Funds. 
6. 	 The City's budget is prepared principally on the cash basis of accounting. 

The following schedule reconciles the amounts on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual to the amounts on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds: 

Net Change in 
Fund Balance 
General Fund 

Budget (Cash Basis) 	 $ (160,483) 

Net adjustments for Revenue Accruals 	 78,909 

GAAP Basis 	 $ (81,574) 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Fire Park and Tourism Tourism Corinth! Infra- Municipal Total 

Protection Library Playground Construction Budget Alcorn CDBG Structure B&I Other 

Fund Fund Fund Fund FUQd Jail Fund Bond Fund Fund Governmental 
Assets: 

Cash 
Receivables 

Prepaid Items 

Total Assets 

$ 

$ 

289,370 

289,370 

$ 

$ 

368,223 
96,914 

465,137 

$ 

$ 

175,920 
130,848 

306,768 

$ 

$ 

789,354 
48,035 

837,389 

$ 

$ 

32,991 
48,034 

81,025 

$ 

$ 

1,181,880 

1,181,880 

$ 

$ 

5,630 
36,075 

41,705 

$ 

$ 

2,013 

2,013 

$ 

$ 

916,094 
392,545 

1,308,639 

$ 

$ 

2,579,595 
752,451 

4,513,926 

Liabilities and Fund Balance: 

Liabilties 

Accounts Payable 

Unearned Revenue 

$ $ 
96,914 

$ 

129,218 
$ $ $ $ 43,204 $ 52,319 $ 

387,655 

$ 95,523 
613,787 

Total Liabilities 96,914 129,218 43,204 52,319 387,655 709,310 

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable: 

Prepaid Items U81,880 1,181,880 
Restricted For: 

Public Safety 289,370 289,370 
Culture and Recreation 837,389 81,025 918,414 
Debt Service 920,984 920,984 

Committed to 

Culture and Recreation 368,223 177,550 545,773 
Unassigned (1,499) (50,306) (51,805) 

Total Fund Balance 289,370 368,223 177,550 837,389 81,025 1,181,880 (1,499) (50,306) 920,984 3,804,616 

Total Liabilities 

and Fund Balance $ 289,370 $ 465,137 $ 306,768 $ 837,389 $ 81,025 $ 1,181,880 $ 41,705 $ 2,013 $ 1,308,639 $ 4,513,926 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 

Fire Park and Tourism Tourism Corinth! Infra- Municipal Total 

Protection Libr.ny Playground Construction Budget Alcorn CDBG Structure B&I Other 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Jail Fund Bond Fund Fund Governmental 

Revenues: 

Taxes $ $ 118,170 $ 159,187 $ $ $ - $ $ $ 477,970 $ 755,327 
Intergovernmental 74,768 8,961 274,829 510,115 568,802 521,525 38,083 1,997,083 
Other 2,254 3,115 2,047 6,230 232 370 1,675 8,257 24,180 

Total Revenues 77,022 130,246 436,063 516,345 569,034 521,895 1,675 524,310 2,776,590 

Expenditures: 

Current 

Public Safety 3,964 3,964 
Public Service 250,474 58,204 308,678 
Culture and Recreation 123,300 415,910 739,712 545,687 1,824,609 

Capital Outlay 

Debt Service: 
275,238 629,701 904,939 

Principal 12,810 445,000 457,810 
Interest and Other Charges 18,706 269,751 288,457 

Total Expenditures 35,480 123,300 415,910 739,712 545,687 525,712 629,701 772,955 3,788,457 

Excess of Revenues Over 

(Under) Expenditures 41,542 6,946 20,153 (223,367) 23,347 (3,817) (628,026) (248,645) (1,011,867) 

Other Financing Sources(Uses): 

Proceeds of Loans 

Refunding bonds issued 

Premiums on bonds issued 

Operating Transfers In(Out) 

Payments to bond refunding escrow agent 

Discount on bonds issued 

Total Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) 

34,073 

(10,041) 

24,032 

137,174 

137,174 

2,280,000 
37,530 

(2,248,121 ) 
(22,800) 

46,609 

34,073 
2,280,000 

37,530 
127,133 

(2,248,121 ) 
(22,800) 

207,815 

Excess of Revenues and Other 

Sources over (under) Expenditures 

and Other Uses 41,542 6,946 20,153 (223,367) 23,347 20,215 (490,852) (202,036) (804,052) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 247,828 361,277 157,397 1,060,756 57,678 1,181,880 (21,714) 440,546 1,123,020 4,608,668 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 289,370 $ 368,223 $ 177,550 $ 837,389 $ 81,025 $ 1,181,880 $ (1,499) $ (50,306) $ 920,984 $ 3,804,616 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. 

. ,. 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


• 

Federal QrantorlPass-Through GrantarlProgrl\l11 Title 

U,S, Department ofJustjce 

Direct Grants 

ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Program 

Total U,S, Department ofJustice 

U S, Department ofHom eland Security 

Passed-through MS Emergency Management Agency 

Public Assistance Grant Program 

Total U.S, Department ofHomeland Security 

U S. Environmental Protection Ageru;y 

Passed-through the MS Dept. ofHealth 

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 

Total Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 

Passed-through the MS Dept, ofEnvironmental Quality 

ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 

ARRA - State Clean Diesel Grant Program 

Total U,S. Environmental Protection Agency 

U.S Department ofInterior 

Passed-through National Park Service 

Preserve America Grant 

U.S, Department ofTransportatjoo 

Direct Grants 

Airport Improvement Program 

U,S, Dep!l!1men! QfHQlj§ing and Urban ~velopment 

Federal 


CFDA 


Number 


16,804 

97.036 

66.468 

66.468 

66.458 

66,040 

15.904 

20.106 

Pass-Through 


Entity 


Nwnber 


DWI-H280064-0S-0 


DWI-H280064-04-0 


SRF·85S-04-ARSR 


28-07-PA-3021 


Federal 


Expenditures 


4,057 

4,057 

152,060 

152,060 

670,126 

4,710,726 

5,380,852 

240,560 

28,132 

5,649,544 

58,687 

224,685 

Passed-through MS Development Authority 

Community Development Block Grant - State's Program 14.228 1 124-07-1 55-ED-O 206,266 

Total U,S, Department ofHousing and Urban Development 206,266 

Total for All Federal Awards $ 6,295,299 

N2lY 
I. This schedule was prepared using the same basis of accounting and the same significant accounting 

• 

policies, as applicable, used for the basic financial statements. 

2, The expenditure amounts include transfers Qut, as applicable, 

3, The balance outstanding as of September 30,2011, ofloans received under CFDA #66.458 was S12, 184,161 

4, The balance outstanding as of September 30, 2011, of loans received under CFDA #66.468 was $25,947,927 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Position ComEany Bond 

Tommy Irvin Mayor Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Jerry Latch Mayor Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Vickie Roach City Clerk/Tax Collector Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Bill Plaxico Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

Benjamin Albarracin Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

Joe Vann Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

Chip Wood Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 • 
Mike Hopkins Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

Micheal McFall Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

David Roberts Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

Andrew Labas Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

Steve Hill Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 

J. C. Hill Alderman Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America $ 100,000 


John C. Ross City Judge Western Surety Company $ 50,000 


Debbie Hendrix Deputy City Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 


Debbie Hendrix Deputy Tax Collector Western Surety Company $ 100,000 


Trina Killough Deputy Tax Collector Western Surety Company $ 100,000 


Brandy Smith Deputy City Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Alicia Barnett Accounts Payable Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 ., 
Phillip Verdung Building Inspector Western Surety Company $ 25,000 

David Lancaster Chief of Police Western Surety Company $ 50,000 

Diane Johnson Court Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Ginger Seawright Deputy Court Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Missy Wilbanks Deputy Court Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Sharon Graham Deputy Court Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 

Deena Willis Deputy Court Clerk Western Surety Company $ 100,000 
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rm BRAWNER 

, VANSTORY 


& COMPANY, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
LOCATIONS IN CORINTII, MS & BOONEVILLE, MS 

Lou Ann D. Counce, CPA 515 E. Waldron aree! 

Terry E. Cartwright, CPA Post Office Box458 

Corinth, Mississippi 38835 

Telepoone (662) 286-7082 

Fax (662) 286-3365 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
 .,STANDARDS 

To the Mayor and Board ofAldermen 
City ofCorinth, Mississippi 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the primary government of the City of Corinth, 

Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic fmancial 

statements of the City's primary government and have issued our report thereon dated June 18, 2012. The 

auditors' report on the financial statements is modified to reflect that the financial statements do not include 

financial data of the City's component units. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in 

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 


Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 

internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of 

Corinth, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures 

for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. 


Our consideration of internal control over fmancial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the ., 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the 
accompanying Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control 
over fmancial reporting that we consider to be a material weakness. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 

control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 

will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in 

Finding 20J 1-1 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be a material weakness. 
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Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Corinth, Mississippi 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's primary government financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our test disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

The City of Corinth, Mississippi's response to the finding indentified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City of Corinth, Mississippi's response and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the mayor and, board of aldermen, others 
within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

• 


Corinth, Mississippi 
June 18,2012 

.. 
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BRAWNER 

~ VANSTORY 
• & COMPANY,P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
LOCATIONS IN CORINTH, MS & BOONEVILLE, MS 

Lou Ann D. Counce, CPA 515 E, Waldron are.t 
Terry E. Cartwright, CPA Post Office Box 458 

Corinth, Mississippi 38835 

Telephone (662) 286-1082 
Fax (662) 286-3365 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD 

HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 


CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 


To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen •City of Corinth, Mississippi 

Compliance 

We have audited the City of Corinth, Mississippi's, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 

in the OMB Circular A-i33 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct effect on each of City of Corinth, 

Mississippi's major federal programs for the year ended September 30,2011. City of Corinth, Mississippi's major 

federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 

and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 

each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City of Corinth, Mississippi's management. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Corinth, Mississippi's compliance based on our audit. 


We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General ofthe United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits a/States, Local Governments, and Non­

Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 

that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 

test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 

we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements. 


In our opinion, the City of Corinth, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 

ended September 30,2011. 
 • 
Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 

control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 

programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing 

procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 

compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the City's internal control over compliance. 
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Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Corinth, Mississippi 
Page 2 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the mayor and board of aldermen, others 
within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Corinth, Mississippi 
June 18,2012 

.., 
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rBII BRAWNER 
VANSTORY 
& COMPANY, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
LOCATIONS IN CORINTH, MS & BOONEVILLE, MS 

Lou Ann D. Counce, CPA 515 E. Waldron Sreet 

Terry E. Cartwright, CPA Post orr<oe Box 458 

Corinth, Mis~ssippi 38835 

Telephone (662) 286-7082 

Fax (662) 286-3365 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

To the Mayor and Board of Aldennen 
City ofCorinth, Mississippi 

•
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation for the primary government of the City of Corinth, Mississippi, 

as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the 

City's primary government and have issued our report thereon dated June 18, 2012. The auditors' report on the 

primary government financial statements is modified to reflect that the primary government financial statements do 

not include the financial data of the City's component units. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 


We have also perfonned procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, providing 

an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 

not express such an opinion. 


The results of those procedures and our audit of the fmancial statements did not disclose any instances of 

noncompliance with state laws and regulations. 


This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the mayor, board of aldennen, management, federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Corinth, Mississippi 
June 18,2012 • 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 


SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Section I: Summary of Auditors' Results 


Financial Statements: 


1. 	 Type of auditors' report issued on the financial statements: 
Governmental Activities: Unqualified 
Business-Type Activities: Unqualified 
General Fund: Unqualified 
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information: Unqualified 
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units: Adverse 

2. 	 Internal control over fmancial reporting: .. a. Material weakness identified? Yes 
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported 

3. 	 Noncompliance material to the fmancial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards: 

4. 	 Internal control over major programs: 

a. Material weakness identified? No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported 

5. 	 Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified 

6. 	 Any audit finding reported as required by Section _.510 (a) of OMB Circular A-133? No 

7. 	 Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

a. 	 CFDA # 66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State 
Revolving Funds 

b. CFDA # 66.040 	 ARRA - State Clean Diesel Grant Program, 

• 	 Recovery Act 

8. 	 The dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000 

9. 	 Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No 

10. 	 Prior fiscal year audit finding(s) and questioned costs relative to federal awards 
which would require the auditee to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit 
findings as discussed in Section 15(b) ofOMB Circular A-133? No 
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CITY OF CORINTH, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 


Section 2: Findings Relating to the Financial Statements 

The results of our tests disclosed the following finding related to the financial statements that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Significant Deficiency that is also a Material Weakness 

Finding 2011-1 

Condition: During our testing of fine revenue collections in the municipal court clerk's office, we noted 
discrepancies between actual deposits and their supporting documentation. It appears that funds were removed from 
daily deposits prior to them being taken to the bank. We also noted deposits slips had been altered without 
exp lanati on. 

Criteria: Appropriate internal controls require review and matching of stamped deposits slips to daily cash receipt 
reports by personnel other than those preparing the deposits and with physical custody of cash. 

Cause: This is a result of a failure to review stamped deposits and match them to the supporting documentation. 


Effect: Under current conditions, the potential exists for persons to remove material sums of cash without being 

detected in a timely manner by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. 


Recommendation: We recommend the City implement proper segregation of duties over the custody and recording 

of transactions and proper review and oversight by management. 


Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The City agrees with the finding and the 

recommended procedures have been implemented. 


Section 3: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 


The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs related to the federal awards. 
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